
*Executive Session: Subjects that may be considered in executive session are: 1)  Matters, immediate knowledge of which would clearly have 
an adverse effect upon the finances of the public entity; 2)  Subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, 
provided that the person may request a public discussion; 3)  Matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required to be 
confidential; 4)  Matters involving consideration of governmental records that by law are not subject to public disclosure; 5)  Direction to an 
attorney or labor negotiator regarding the handling of specific legal matters or labor negotiations. 

																																								AGENDA	
							COMMUNITY	HEALTH	SERVICES	BOARD		
						Cordova	Center	–	Community	Room	A&B		

												December	8,	2016	at	7:00PM		
																	REGULAR	MEETING	

AT	CCMC,	WE	BELIEVE	THAT	HEALTHY	PEOPLE	CREATE	A	HEALTHY	COMMUNITY.	

Health	Service	Board	
	

President:			
Tim	Joyce														Term	expires	03/17	
Vice‐President:		
Josh	Hallquist						Term	expires	03/18	
Secretary:	
James	Wiese								Term	expires	03/19	
Board	members:	
James	Burton						Term	expires	03/19		
Tom	Bailer											Term	expires	03/17	
Robert	Beedle					Term	expires	03/18	
David	Allison							Term	expires	03/19	
	
CCMC	CEO/Administrator		
Scot	Mitchell	
	

OPENING		
1. Call	to	Order	
2. Roll	Call	–Tim	Joyce,	Josh	Hallquist,	James	Wiese,	James	Burton,	David	Allison,	

Tom	Bailer,	and	Robert	Beedle.		
3. Establishment	of	a	Quorum	

	

A. APPROVAL	OF	AGENDA		

B. CONFLICT	OF	INTEREST		

C. COMMUNICATIONS	BY	AND	PETITIONS	FROM	VISITORS	

1. Audience	Comments	(limited	to	3	minutes	per	speaker).		
Speaker	must	give	name	and	agenda	item	to	which	they	are	addressing.		

2. Guest	Speaker		

D. APPROVAL	OF	CONSENT	CALENDAR		

E. APPROVAL	OF	MINUTES			

1. November	10,	2016	Regular	Meeting	Minutes	 	 	 	 Pages			 1‐3	 	 	
F. REPORTS	OF	OFFICER	and	ADVISORS					 	 																																																							

1. President’s	Report	–	 													 	 	 	 										
2. Administrator’s	Report	–	December	CEO	Report	Attached									 	 Pages			 4‐6	 										
3. Finance	Report	–	September	&	October	Financials	Attached	 	 Pages			 7‐23		
4. QHR	Report	–		Ken	Ward,	Associate	Vice	President							 	 	 Pages			 24‐26

G. CORRESPONDENCE		

H. ACTION	ITEMS	

1. Continuous	Quality	Improvement	Plan	 	 	 	 	 Pages			 27‐34	 	 	 	
2. LTC	301‐	Abuse,	Prevention,	Recognition	and	Reporting	 	 	 Pages	 35‐46	

I. DISCUSSION	ITEMS	
J. AUDIENCE	PARTICIPATION	(limited	to	3	minutes	per	speaker)			

Members	of	the	public	are	given	the	opportunity	to	comment	on	matters	which	are	within	the	subject	matter	jurisdiction	of	the	
Board	and	are	appropriate	for	discussion	in	an	open	session.	

K. BOARD	MEMBERS	COMMENTS		

L. EXECUTIVE	SESSION			

M. ADJOURNMENT		



Minutes 
Community Health Services Board 

Cordova Center – Community Rooms A & B 
November 10, 2016 at 7:00pm 

Regular Meeting  
 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL – 
 

Josh Hallquist called the HSB regular meeting to order at 7:00pm.  Board members present:  
Josh Hallquist, Tim Joyce (telephonically), Tom Bailer, David Allison and Robert 
Beedle. 
James Wiese and James Burton were absent.  
A quorum was established. 5 members present; 2 members absent. 
CCMC staff present:  Scot Mitchell, CEO; Stephen Sundby, Sound Alternatives ED; Lee Holter, 
CFO; and Randy Apodaca, Rehab Services. 
 

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 M/Allison S/Bailer “move to approve the agenda.” 

Vote on motion: 5 yeas, 0 nays, 2 absent.  
Motion was approved. 

 

C. CONFLICT OF INTEREST  
Bailer stated that he has a rental contract with hospital.  

 

D.  COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS  
1. Audience Participation ~ None 
2. Guest Speaker ~ None  

 

E. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR ~ None 
 

F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
M/Bailer S/Beedle “move to approve the minutes from the September 8th and 
September 13th as amended.” 
Vote on motion: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 1 absent.  
Motion was approved. 

 
 1. Minutes from the September 8, 2016 Regular HSB Meeting 
 2. Minutes from the September 13, 2016 Special HSB Meeting 
 3. Minutes from the October 13, 2016 Regular HSB Meeting 
 
 James Wiese arrived at 7:06pm 
 

G. REPORTS OF OFFICERS and ADVISORS  
President’s Report ~ Tim Joyce reported that the Governance Structure is on the agenda 
again as a discussion item after a few small modifications were made by staff after the last 
meeting. 
Administrator’s Report ~ Scot Mitchell reported that his written report is in the packet, and 
there are a few things that I’d like to add that have come up this week. An email went out earlier 
this week to let the board know that the State surveyor did show up for our annual Long Term 
Care inspection. The survey is going relatively well considering the amount of turnover that we’ve 
had at the hospital. There are a couple of things that are different with this survey, there is a 
new set of Fire, Life, Safety code that went into effect last week and we are the first hospital to 
be surveyed under the new regulations.  Also, yesterday we had an audit of our PERS and Social 
Security, the last time we had an audit was in 2007. We have not gotten the written report back 
yet, we should be getting that next week or the week after. I will let you know as soon as we get 
the written audit report. With the Presidential election that happened earlier this week, one of 1



the key components of his efforts will be on healthcare. We will have to wait and see where this 
goes in regards to the claim to repeal Obamacare. Next month we will be presenting you our 
Quality Plan for 2017 and a calendar of all of the Quality activities that we will be performing next 
year. One of the areas that I’d like to discuss, is right now the Bylaws for the HSB require that 
you have to approve every policy that the hospital creates. There are some policies that are 
regulatory in nature that must be approved by the board, for example the Quality Improvement 
Plan. So one of the things that I’d like to discuss going forward is changing that so that we as 
staff can get policies in place, reviewed, approved in a lot quicker fashion and would make your 
board meetings go a lot quicker as well. I’d like to put that on the agenda for next month as a 
discussion item. Also, there are a lot of things happening at the hospital right now with the 
surveys and everything, it’s nice that for the first time in over a year that we have a full time 
Senior Executive Team. Lisa Cuff, our new DON started 2 weeks ago; Lee Holter, our CFO has 
been here a little over a month; I’ve been here just over 4 months. Between the 3 of us we have 
over 66 years of health care experience and we’re ready to tackle this. We’ve got two new nurses 
that started last week and one starting next month. Hopefully very soon we will have a full local 
staff and we won’t have to rely on travelers anymore. And I just wanted you all to know that we 
are closing on our house just a little earlier than I had originally thought, so I will be taking a few 
days off next week to move.  
Finance Report ~ Lee Holter reported that we have the August Financial Report here, but I 
was not able to get the September Financials completed. I just want to highlight some of the 
narrative from Lee Bennett, the 3rd paragraph on page 13 tell that the cost recoveries were 
$614,085 which was considerably higher than July. Grants were up due to the receipt of monies 
for the Behavioral Health, Nutritional Transportation and Support grants. Repairs were over 
budget by $22,513 due to equipment repairs in imagining, the LTC van repair and the annual 
elevator maintenance contract. We have the stats and I’m hopeful that we will have a good 
month in September. I should be able to bring the September and October financials to the 
December meeting. 
  Lee Holter went into greater detail for the Board to define the classification units per 
department that were reported on for the statistics.  
Quorum Report ~ Ken Ward, QHR Associate Vice President stated that he was glad to be 
here, and has spent the last few days at the hospital and had the benefit and privilege to sit in 
on the weekly Leadership Team Meeting. After touring the hospital and meeting the lion’s share 
of the Director’s, you have some good people here. They really seem to take ownership and 
really seem committed to seeing this hospital succeed. Ken defined the acronym MOON 
(Medicare Outpatient Observation Notice) to the Board. Something we’re wanting to stress to the 
Board to take a look at your Workplace Violence policies and specifically your Active Shooter 
policies, protocols and training that’s being done. It’s becoming more common in the workplace.  
The ALICE Training is the standard that is used, it stands for Alert, Lock Down, Inform, Contain 
and Evacuate. We’re encouraging the boards because it is part their overall responsibility and 
fiduciary responsibility to ensure that these policies are in place, it’s being tested and that the 
hospital is having drills and reporting that back. Scot reported that the hospital has been in 
touch with Chief Hicks to come in and do some training and a drill for the staff. Ken Ward I just 
wanted to let you know that we will be doing a mini cost report very soon so we can see exactly 
where we stand on a score board. Coming up here has really helped me a lot putting faces with 
names and also to see first-hand the challenges that they’re up having. What I saw today was 
very impressive.  

H. CORRESPONDENCE ~ None 
 
 

I. ACTION ITEMS  
 1. 2015 Audit Financial Statement Approval 
 M/Bailer S/Wiese “I move to approve the 2015 Audited Financial Statement.” 

Vote on motion: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 1 absent.  
Motion was approved. 2



 
 
 2. Amended 2017 CCMC Budget   
 M/Bailer S/Allison “I move to approve the Amended 2017 CCMC Operating Budget.” 

Vote on motion: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 1 absent.  
Motion was approved. 

 
J. DISCUSSION ITEMS  

1.   HSB Governance Model 
Tim Joyce reported that he has reviewed the draft Governance Model and likes this much 
better. There are a few things in there that still need to be looked at, there are missing ordinance 
numbers or state law reference numbers and a few blanks in the document. This is something 
that we need and I would say that very soon we need to forward this on to City Council to review 
and adopt. If we’re going to have elections in March this needs to be taken care of rather quickly. 
Beedle enquired as to whether quarterly meetings were enough. 
Scot Mitchell replied that quarterly is what the code currently states. He reiterated that the 
language in the draft stated “The board shall meet at least quarterly…”.  
 
The board continued a discussion regarding the stated frequency of HSB meetings going forward.  
 
The majority of the board members present came to the consensus that the draft 
governance model is at a point that it should be sent to the attorney’s for their review 
and then to City Council.  

  

K. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION ~ None 
 

L. BOARD MEMBERS COMMENTS  
Joyce ~ Thank you all for your work on the budget and audit report, I know there’s a lot of 
work that’s involved, I want to express my appreciation. 
Hallquist ~ I really like seeing what’s going on, things are looking up, good job guys!  
Wiese ~ Thank you Scot for your invitation to the CEO lunch. And thank you guys for your hard 
work on the reports.  
Bailer ~ Something that I heard Ken Ward said tonight that really perked me up, “he saw a real 
sense of ownership”. That is so important, you can’t have a successful business if your 
employees don’t have a sense of ownership. I really appreciate that from the employees and I 
hope that they are getting some kind of recognition for that. Tell them that the board really 
appreciates that.   
Allison ~ Thank you to Scot and staff for the work you do.  
Beedle ~ Thank you too, I’m a lot more optimistic now. I appreciate everybody’s hard work. It 
looks like we might be coming out of a swamp.   

 

M. ADJOURNMENT – 
M/Bailer S/Allison “I move to adjourn the meeting.”   
Hallquist declared the meeting adjourned at 8:33pm 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:   Faith Wheeler-Jeppson 

3



~ Healthy People Create a Healthy Community ~ 
 

 

CEO Report to the HSB 
December 8, 2016 Meeting 
Scot Mitchell, CEO 
 

The Big Picture 

 

Well, the election is over and Donald Trump is the President‐elect.  This was the most fascinating 

election in recent history.  Trump has stated that he wants to repeal and replace the Affordable Care Act 

as one of his first actions as President.  It will be very interesting to see what Trump ultimately does with 

the ACA.  It provided insurance coverage to 20 million previously uninsured people, although at an 

enormous cost.  It will be difficult to change the program if it results in those 20 million people losing 

coverage.  On the other hand, the ACA has added trillions in total costs and billions of dollars in 

administrative costs to the federal budget.  Here are some more tidbits about Trump’s effects on the 

healthcare system. 

 

 Trump has nominated Rep. Tom Price from Georgia.  Price is an orthopedic surgeon with 20 years of 
experience in private practice.  He is a staunch opponent of government waste and even introduced 
the Empowering Patients First Act in 2015 that would have fully repealed the ACA and replaced it with 
a plan that included individual health pools and expanded health savings accounts.  The healthcare 
industry  and Republicans have  reacted  favorably  to Price’s nomination, but  some Democrats  are 
skeptical of him. 

 Seema Verma was selected by Trump to be the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CSM) 
Administrator.   Verma  is  credited with designing  the Healthy  Indiana Plan which was  that  state’s 
consumer‐directed Medicaid program.  She has also helped other states develop similar plans.  She is 
also supported by the healthcare industry.  Both Verma and Price will have to be confirmed by the 
Senate after Trump takes office next month. 

 The American Hospital Association has sent a letter to President‐elect Trump asking him to champion 
several policies  that would  support  the healthcare  industry.   They asked Trump  to not make any 
abrupt changes or repeal the ACA without a replacement plan.   The AHA  letter outlined five areas 
they would like Trump to consider. 

o The  removal of  some  regulatory burdens  such  as  eliminating  Stage  3 meaningful  use  for 
hospitals;  implementation  of  a  penalty  for  high  rates  of  incorrect  denials  under  the  RAC 

4



~ Healthy People Create a Healthy Community ~ 
 

program; protection of clinical integration arrangements under the Anti‐Kickback Statute and 
eliminating several post‐acute care regulations. 

o AHA asked Trump  to support several  financial policies such as addressing  the high cost of 
drugs; protecting the 340B drug pricing program; opposing mergers between payers and to 
consider Medicare reforms, such as raising the eligibility age. 

o Mull  over  redesigning,  or  eliminating,  many  quality  reporting  requirements.    These 
requirements are excessive, redundant and not always meaningful. 

o They advocated for ensuring access to care in his healthcare policies.  Specifically, they asked 
for continued funding for CHIP, expanded mental health services, formation of a permanent 
Veterans Choice Program which allows veterans to access care outside of the VA system. 

o The AHA also asked Trump to maintain, or update, the value‐based care models that were 
adopted in the ACA. 

 

Next year will be very interesting in the healthcare industry.  We should buckle up and enjoy the ride! 

 

Status Updates 

 

 As you know, we had a standard LTC licensure and certification survey during the week of November 
7th.  This included a survey using the new updated life safety codes, of which we are the first facility 
in Alaska to be surveyed.  According to staff that have been through other recent surveys, they stated 
that this survey was the best one in recent memory for the LTC.  While that may be true, we are still 
working to correct the deficiencies and improve our operations to reach the ultimate goal of having 
no deficiencies.  We are still working on the Plan of Correction, which will list the steps we are taking 
to correct these shortcomings.  

 We had a PERS and Social Security Audit on November 9th.  We do know that we will have a few PERS 
deficiencies to correct from that audit.  There should be no Social Security deficiencies, according to 
the surveyor.  We have not yet received the report back from the State. 

 The data requested as part of the CMS audit of three physical therapy cases from last year has been 
completed and submitted.  One of the cases that was selected for a review is of significant concern to 
me.  It was a case where a patient had been admitted to swing bed care but the claim was denied 
since the patient did not have a qualifying three night acute care stay prior to the swing bed admission.  
Subsequently the decision was made by someone on staff to resubmit the PT claims as an outpatient 
visit despite the care being given  in the swing bed setting.   This was not appropriate and we have 
requested CMS to withdraw that claim.  I will update the HSB once we hear back from CMS on these 
issues. 

 As you know from the Special HSB meeting last week, we have worked closely with the City to bring a 
pared‐down subsidy request for 2017.  Knowing the dire financial situation for next year, our request 
is for just under half of the amount that has been provided in the past couple years.  By having this 
request in advance, it will allow the City to plan more appropriately for cash flow purposes. 

 We continue to experience issues with our Healthland Centriq system.  We had Healthland staff onsite 
last month to help with finding solutions to the problems we are having.  Some were corrected, but 
we also found additional ones while they were here.  We still do not have confidence in the Centriq 
system, and will actively start researching a new EHR system after the first of the year. 

5



~ Healthy People Create a Healthy Community ~ 
 

 The Community Health Needs Assessment is underway.  Paper surveys have been mailed to a portion 
of the population of Cordova and key informant interviews are being conducted as well.  The firm that 
is conducting the CHNA for us will be onsite later this month to present the survey results and help us 
start developing an action plan to address the community needs.  As of last week, they had received 
at least 100 completed surveys, and conducted about half of the key informant interviews. 

 You will be presented with the CCMC 2017 Continuous Quality Improvement Plan for your approval 
at this meeting.  I am very impressed with how well our staff has concentrated on restoring our QI 
program.   In a few short months, they have developed several QI studies that are already showing 
improvements.    I want  to  thank Randy Apodaca and  the  rest of  the  leadership  team at CCMC  for 
showing such determination to continue improving everything we do so we can have the best possible 
health care for the people of Cordova. 

 Every five years, CMS requires that providers revalidate their CMS registration.  Our revalidation was 
due on November 30th for our CAH and Swing Bed facilities.  Lee Holter and his staff did a great job 
getting all the information together and submitting the necessary applications to CMS. 

 Lee Holter and Randy Apodaca have been working  tirelessly  to get our quality  reporting  for 2016 
submitted so that we will not have any additional reimbursement penalties for our physicians.  As I 
mentioned previously, CCMC did not report any PQRS quality data in 2015 for Dr. Blackadar, which 
will result in a 2% reduction in payments for patients seen by Dr. Blackadar next year.  This issue is 
not due to anything that Dr. Blackadar did or did not do, since it is something that is supposed to be 
done by the billing staff when submitting claims for physician services.   No PQRS quality data was 
being submitted for Dr. Blackadar for 2016, but we do have another option to submit 2016 data for 
both Dr. Blackadar and Dr. Sanders, which will prevent another reduction in 2018 claims.   

 I also want to acknowledge the great work that two of our newest team members have achieved in a 
very short time.  Lee Holter started as our full time CFO on October 4th, and he was faced with the 
very daunting task of trying to get our financial system and revenue cycle management program back 
on solid footing.   Lee has found, and corrected, a  lot of  issues that are helping us get our finances 
heading in the right direction.  Lisa Cuff became our full time DON on October 24th.  She has started 
working with the nursing staff to get a solid foundation in place for continued improvements.  Having 
your first LTC survey within a couple weeks of starting was tough, but Lisa worked with the staff to 
get through it nicely.  Lisa has already started developing a new education program for the nursing 
department, along with taking on the Infection Control program.   I am very pleased with how well 
both Lee and Lisa have jumped in to their new roles and are already making positive improvements. 

 In looking back at this report, it seems like there is a lot of discouraging information in it.  I don’t want 
it to sound too gloomy.  It should be just the opposite.  These types of issues are unfortunately the 
result of the high turnover seen at CCMC over the past several years.  With the continuity of staff, we 
now  have  the  ability  to  dig  into  the matters  and  start  developing  corrective  action  plans  as we 
continue to improve the facility.  I am very impressed with the great team of people we have here and 
I know that working together we will make CCMC the best CAH in Alaska!  As we prepare for a new 
and exciting year ahead, I want to say thank you to all our employees, medical staff, volunteers and 
HSB members for everything you do to help this wonderful organization! 

 

 

6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



The security of the hospital is one of the Board’s most important responsibilities.  So important 
in fact, hospitals are required by The Joint Commission and by the National Incident Management 
System (NIMS) to incorporate violence planning into their operations.

   The purpose of NIMS is to provide a common approach for managing incidents in order to reduce 
loss of life, property and harm to the environment.

   All hospitals and healthcare systems (including CAH facilities) receiving Federal preparedness and 
response grants, contracts or cooperative agreements (i.e. Bioterrorism Hospital Preparedness 
Program, Department of Homeland Security grants) must work to implement NIMS.

Unique Risks Associated with Hospital Security
 Various factors make hospitals vulnerable 
to security issues like multiple facility 
entry points and unpredictable emotional 
responses of visitors and patients. 

Reducing Security Risk
The Board’s role in hospital security is to 
implement staff  training and ensure annual 
assessments and response plans are in 
place to minimize security risk.  

Annual Assessments
  Emergency Operating Plan
  Professional and General Liability
  Hazard Vulnerability Analysis
  Adequate security staff 

Response Planning
  Activation
  Communication
  Facility Security
  Documented Operational Response Procedures

Quorum Board Minutes

Hospital Security:  Keeping Employees, Patients and Visitors Safe
November 2016

www.QHR.com

Multiple entry 
points to facility

Patient 
visitors

Vulnerable 
patients

Unpredictable 
emotional 
responses

24-hour facility 
access

25



Implement Staff  Training 
  Collaborate with local law enforcement and other organizations for training and support
  Utilize active shooter response planning, education, training for all staff  (ALICE training)

www.QHR.com

Quorum provides client hospitals 
with a security checklist to help 
create incident response plans.  

Please talk to your RVP if you 
have any questions.

Heard Around the Web on This Topic
 “California has now set the bar with the strongest workplace violence regulation in the nation.” 

  NPR:  California Rules about Violence against Health Works Could Become a Model

“With our society today and incidents of violence at places like schools, movie theaters and malls, 
hospitals are certainly not exempt.”

  FierceHealthcare:  Hospitals on the defense: Robots, staff  training help beef up security

“In late 2015, the federal government released a bulletin calling on hospitals to review their disaster 
plans, with recommendations including reviewing security plans, drills that replicate recent 
scenarios and regular testing of emergency communications equipment.”

  FierceHealthcare:  Hospitals commit to emergency plans in wake of mass shootings

26



 
December 8, 2016 
 
To:   Health Service Board 
Subject: Continuous Quality Improvement Plan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Suggested Motion: “I move to approve the CCMC 2017 Continuous Quality Improvement 
Plan.”  

27



~ Healthy People Create a Healthy Community ~ 
 

 

2017 CCMC Continuous Quality Improvement Plan 
 
 
Cordova Community Medical Center (CCMC) is dedicated to providing quality healthcare consistent 
with the hospital mission.  Our goal is to provide delivery of services that are: Safe, effective, 
patient‐ centered, efficient and equitable. 

 
To achieve this goal, all employees of our hospital will participate in ongoing Quality 
Improvement (QI) efforts. 

 
The QI Plan outlines the goals and strategies for ensuring patient safety, delivering optimal care, 
and achieving high patient satisfaction. 
 
Authority: 
 
The Health Services Board of CCMC is ultimately responsible for ensuring high quality care is provided 
to our patients.  The Board delegates the responsibility for implementing this plan to the CEO. The CEO 
is responsible to delegate quality management efforts for the entire facility to all staff through the 
Quality Management Committee (QMC). 
 
Quality Management Committee: 
 
The Quality Management Committee consists of the following individuals:  The CEO, Medical Director, 

DON, Department Managers as well as the CFO. 
 
The members of the QMC are responsible for: 

 
 ensuring that the review functions for each department and sub‐committee are completed; 

 ensuring that the Quality Management Plan is reviewed and acted upon appropriately and 
includes: 

o review of Long Term Care and Critical Access Hospital regulatory updates, 
o review of Life Safety regulatory updates, and 
o provide a summary report to QMC on a quarterly basis; 

 prioritizing and reviewing issues referred to the QMC; 

 ensuring that data obtained through QI activities are analyzed, recommendations made, 

and appropriate follow up of problem resolution is done; 

 covering Utilization Review; 

28



~ Healthy People Create a Healthy Community ~ 
 

 ensuring completion of Periodic Evaluation functions to meet Conditions of Participation 

requirements as a Critical Access Hospital. 

 
The QMC consists of sub‐committees that will meet quarterly or more often as necessary. 
 
The sub‐committees are responsible for policy and procedure review and development as well 
as utilization review activities. 

 
1.   Fire/Safety/Disaster: This committee  shall  include but  is not  limited  to  representatives  from 

Environmental Services/Maintenance, Nursing and Administration and will meet on a quarterly 
basis.  This  committee  is  responsible  for  providing  and  maintaining  a  safe  work  and  care 
environment and maintaining a disaster plan and provide training. 

 
2.    Infection Control:  This  committee  is  required  to meet on a quarterly basis and shall include 

but is not limited to the Infection Control Coordinator, the Director of Nursing or designee, the 
Employee Health Nurse, a Medical Provider, a representative from Laboratory, Environmental 
Services/Maintenance,  Dietary  and  Administration.  This  committee  is  responsible  for  staff 
training and monitoring the infection control system facility wide. 

 
3.    Medical Staff: This group  includes all members of the medical staff, the Director of Nursing, 

the HIM Manager, and the CEO. This group is responsible for ensuring the quality of patient care 
through monitoring and evaluating performance and outcomes, in accordance with established 
medical staff bylaws and rules and regulations.  Areas of review shall include, but are not limited 
to medical record review and blood usage review. 

 

4.    Pharmacy   and   Therapeutics:   This   committee shall meet on a quarterly basis and shall 
consist of     all     members     of      the     Medical     Staff,      the CEO, the Director of Nursing, the 
Consulting Pharmacist, and the Pharmacy Technician. This  committee  is  responsible  for the 
overall management of pharmacy practices,  including  formulary  revision  and  maintenance, 
reporting  of  adverse drug reactions and evaluation of proper medication usage. 

 
5.   Quality Improvement Committee:  This   committee shall meet on a quarterly basis or more 

frequently if necessary.  The QI committee shall consist of a member from all service areas 
within  CCMC.    CCMC  service  areas  include,  but  are  not  limited  to:  Medical  Staff, 
Administration, Financial Services, Human Resources, Nursing Services (IP/ER/LTC/OP), Dietary 
Services,  Clinical  Laboratory  Services,  Rehabilitation  Services,  Imaging  Services,  Behavioral 
Health,  Health  Information  Management,  Material  Management,  Infection  Control, 
Pharmaceutical  Services,  Facilities,  Environmental  Services,  Primary  Care  Clinic,  and  Social 
Services. This committee is responsible for coordinating and overseeing CCMC’s Long Term Care 
and Critical Access Hospital Quality Assurance and Process Improvement efforts. 

 
4.    Utilization Review Committee:   This   committee shall meet on a quarterly basis and shall 

consist of a member of the Medical Staff, a representative of the HIM department, the CEO, 
the Director of Nursing, and the CFO.  Other staff may be requested to participate as deemed 
necessary.   This committee  is responsible for oversight  in maintaining uniform guidelines for 
management of the utilization of resources and services provided at CCMC. 

 
   

29



~ Healthy People Create a Healthy Community ~ 
 

Quality Improvement Processes and Methodology: 

 
The continuous Quality Improvement plan is a framework for the organized, ongoing and systematic 
measurement, assessment and performance improvement activities.  The components of this plan 
include a quick‐fix process that will be used for problems that do not need a comprehensive approach 
to problem solving and solution implementation. 

 
Quality improvement teams may be necessary to look at particular issues to identify opportunities 
to improve processes and outcomes. 

 
QMC will provide a report summarizing Quality Improvement data prepared for the board 
through the CEO, or designee, on a quarterly basis. 

 
The quality improvement methodology we will use is: PDSA 

Plan: Opportunity for Improvement. What is the planned improvement? 

Do: What did you do to improve the process? 

Study: What did you learn? What will you change? 

Act:  What steps have been taken to improve the process? Or what will your next PDSA focus on? 

 

Department and Staff Responsibility: 

 
Every service area within Cordova Community Medical Center is responsible for implementing quality 
improvement activities.  All quality improvement initiatives must be conducted as a part of the hospital 
wide QMC activities.  Each department manager is responsible for identifying quality indicators, 
collecting and analyzing data, developing and implementing changes to improve service delivery, 
identifying educational needs and ensuring that staff education for quality improvement takes place 
and monitoring to assure that improvement is made and sustained.  The 2017 department specific 
improvement activities are defined in Attachment 1: 2017 Quality Improvement Projects.  Each 
department will monitor utilization of their department’s services and will report utilization review 
activities to the QMC.  The ultimate goal is to improve the quality of care that is routinely provided to 
the patients and residents of CCMC. 
 
Membership with outside Quality programs 

 
This facility Works with the Alaska State Hospital and Nursing Home Association (ASHNHA), Mountain 
Pacific Quality Health (MPQH), and other agencies that provides an opportunity to identify appropriate 
measures of quality, provide a mechanism to meet licensure and certification requirements for outside 
quality review and to establish best practices for Long Term Care Centers and CAHs.  All data gathered 
with these agreements is utilized for assessing and improving quality and for educational purposes.   
 
 
Confidentiality: 

 
In accordance with Alaska Statute 18.23.030, the interviews, reports, statements, other data, 
proceedings and records of the Quality Management and Improvement Committees shall be 
privileged and confidential and shall not be subject to discovery either by subpoena or other means of 

30



~ Healthy People Create a Healthy Community ~ 
 

legal compulsion for release to any person or entity for any reason, including use in any judicial or 
administrative proceeding. 
 
No member, consultant, advisor or person supplying information to the Quality Management or 
Improvement Committees or sub‐committee(s) shall disclose information concerning matters 
submitted to, considered by, or issuing from the Quality Management or Improvement Committees or 
sub‐committee(s).  Unauthorized disclosure shall be grounds for disciplinary action, including 
termination of employment or termination of medical staff privileges.  No disclosure of any such 
interview materials, reports, records, statements, memoranda, proceedings, findings, or data shall be 
made without the authorization of the CEO. 
 
Our facility will make every effort to adhere to State and Federal standards and will utilize our 
quality assurance activities to establish benchmarks, comparative data bases and professional 
standards of practice. 

 
Scope of Review: 

 
The QMC will review activities each quarter and assist with QI recommendations as necessary 

or requested. 
 
Annual Evaluation: 

 

Our CQI Plan will be evaluated on an annual basis for effectiveness in achieving our goal of ensuring 
that the most appropriate quality of services is provided. A summary of activities, improvements 
made, care delivery processes modified, projects in progress, and recommendations for changes to this 
CQI Plan, will be compiled.  This summary will be presented to QMC for review and final conclusions will 
be forwarded for HSB review and approval. 

 

 

CQI Plan Approval: 

 

 

__________________________________________      ___________________ 

Medical Director              Date 

 

 

 

__________________________________________      ___________________ 

Health Service Board              Date 

       

 

 

__________________________________________      ___________________ 

Chief Executive Officer             Date 
   

31



~ Healthy People Create a Healthy Community ~ 
 

 

 Attachment 1: 2017 Quality Improvement Projects 

 
Note:  LTC indicates that a quality measure is an area of focus for the Long Term Care unit. 
  CAH indicates that a quality measure is an area of focus for the Hospital unit. 
 

 Medical Staff:  

o Substance abuse (CAH) – improving needs identification for drug and alcohol counseling 

and assistance. 

o Tobacco cessation screening (CAH) – improving patient access to cessation counseling 

and interventions. 

o DVT prevention (CAH) – reducing patient risk for deep vein thrombosis during 

hospitalization.  

o Heart Failure (CAH) – improving outcomes for heart failure patients. 

o Abdominal pain CTs (CAH) – optimizing use of contrast in abdominal CT scans.  

 Nursing: 

o Interdepartmental communication (LTC and CAH) – using standardized or evidence 

based tools for ensuring effective interdepartmental communication. 

o Nurse education and competency (LTC and CAH) – ensuring nurse competency through 

ongoing education and tracking. 

o Medication errors (LTC and CAH) – monitoring and reducing errors in medication 

administration. 

o Falls (LTC) – reduction of frequency of patient falls and associated injuries. 

o Nursing documentation (LTC and CAH) – ensuring accurate, thorough and timely 

documentation through workflow process improvement. 

 Infection Control: 

o Hand hygiene (LTC and CAH) – infection prevention through monitoring of hand hygiene 

compliance. 

o Equipment cleaning (LTC and CAH) – preventing the spread of infection through 

ensuring equipment cleaning compliance. 

o Education and Compliance (LTC and CAH) – preventing the spread of infection through 

administering an effective education and compliance program. 

o Isolation practices (LTC and CAH) – infection prevention by establishing evidence based 

isolation practices. 

   

32



~ Healthy People Create a Healthy Community ~ 
 

 Clinic: 

o Employee health compliance (LTC and CAH) – ensuring regulatory compliance through 

improve employee health tacking. 

 Facilities: 

o Hospital laundry (LTC and CAH) – monitoring and optimizing the amount and usage of 

supplies and staff time consumed doing laundry. 

o Work order turnaround times (LTC and CAH) – decrease work order turnaround times 

through improved communication and prioritizing efficiency. 

 Environmental Services: 

o Workflow efficiency (LTC and CAH) – improving overall cleanliness of the facility through 

optimizing cleaning methods, schedules, and staff utilization. 

 Safety: 

o Injury prevention(LTC and CAH)  – reducing risk of injury to patients, visitors, and staff 

through optimizing use of resources to prevent falls on facility grounds during inclement 

weather. 

 Laboratory:  

o STAT send out tests (CAH) – establishing STAT send out protocol and optimizing 

resource use to minimize test turnaround times.  

o Patient test turnaround times (CAH) – ensuring timely test completion and results 

reporting to providers. 

o Results in medical record (CAH) – ensuring accurate and timely inclusion of lab results in 

patient charts. 

 Radiology 

o CT and x‐ray study turnaround times (CAH) – ensuring timely completion of radiologic 

studies. 

 Sterile Processing 

o Routine maintenance of equipment (CAH) – ensuring sterilization equipment is 

maintained per regulations and manufacturer’s instructions. 

 Rehabilitation Services  

o Progress updates (LTC and CAH) – ensure that 100% of PT/OT patients have progress 

updates as required by CMS. 

o LTC Admission Screening (LTC) – Upon admission, all LTC residents will be screened by 

Rehabilitation Services for mobility and activities of daily living needs and 

recommendations. 

 Materials Management/Pharmacy Management 

o STAT orders (LTC and CAH) – monitoring/reducing frequency and costs associated with 

STAT orders for materials and pharmaceuticals. 

o Unsecured sharps and pharmaceuticals (LTC and CAH) – ensuring safe storage of 

materials in all areas of care. 

 Dietary 

o Patient food temperatures (LTC and CAH) – ensuring patient food is served at 

appropriate temperatures. 

o Senior program home meals (CAH) – ensuring practice and policy are in alignment when 

qualifying seniors for home meal delivery. 

33



~ Healthy People Create a Healthy Community ~ 
 

 Human Resources 

o Employee Turnover (LTC and CAH) – monitoring and reducing employee turnover and 

associated costs. 

o Nursing licensure and credentials (LTC and CAH) – ensuring all nursing staff licensing, 

certifications and credentials are current. 

o HealthStream (LTC and CAH) – ensuring all employees are current with training required 

by federal and state regulations. 

 Finance 

o  Billing integrity (LTC and CAH) – ensuring all charges associated with care are properly 

billed. 

 Administration 

o Housing (LTC and CAH) – monitoring usage and costs of employee housing. 

o Policies and procedures (LTC and CAH) – monitoring completion of P&P review and 

revision per regulatory requirements. 

 HIM 

o Reducing incomplete or deficient patient orders (LTC and CAH) – ensuring 100% of 

incomplete/deficient patient orders are documented and corrected in order to improve 

patient care documentation and accuracy of billing. 

 Behavioral Health: 

Documentation completion time (CAH) – improving documentation accuracy and billing 

process by ensuring documentation is completed within 48 hours of service. 

 Social Services 

o Long Term Care Quality of Life (LTC) – ensure LTC resident’s rooms are safe, functional, 

and homelike by conducting routine room checks and coordinating efforts to complete 

room improvements. 

 

34



 
December 8, 2016 
 
To:   Health Service Board 
Subject: LTC 301- Abuse, Prevention, Recognition and Reporting Policy 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Suggested Motion: “I move to approve the LTC 301 - Abuse, Prevention, Recognition and 
Reporting Policy.”  

35



Cordova Community Medical Center 
Policies and Procedures 

 
SUBJECT:  Abuse Prevention, Recognition and Reporting 
DEPARTMENT: Long Term Care (LTC) 
 
Original Approval Date:  March 24, 2005 
Approved By: Scot Mitchell, CEO 
 

POLICY # LTC 301 

      New 
X   Revised 
      Reviewed 

Date: 
12/8/2016 

Page 1 of 8 
 
Policy: 
 
It is the practice of Cordova Community Medical Center (CCMC) that all alleged violations involving 
mistreatment, neglect, and abuse, including injuries of unknown sources and misappropriation of resident 
property be reported immediately to the director of nurses and to state officials in accordance with state laws 
through established procedures including the state survey and certification agency. (42 CFR 483.13 OBRA 
Regulations) Names, addresses and telephone numbers of pertinent client advocacy groups such as the State 
survey and certification agency, the State licensure office, the Long Term Care Ombudsman and the 
Medicaid Fraud Unit, and a statement that the resident may file a complaint with any listed agency will be 
posted prominently throughout the facility. 
 
Definitions:  
 
1. Abuse: Willful infliction of injury, unreasonable confinement, intimidation, or punishment with resulting 

physical harm, pain or mental anguish. This also includes the deprivation by an individual, including a 
caretaker, of goods or service that are necessary to attain or maintain physical, mental and psychosocial 
well-being. (Reference LTC F223) 

 
2. Verbal Abuse: Use of oral, written or gestured language that willfully includes disparaging and 

derogatory terms to residents or their families, or within their hearing distance, regardless of their age, 
ability to comprehend, or disability. Examples of verbal abuse include, but are not limited to: threats of 
harm; saying things to frighten a resident, such as telling a resident that he/she will never be able to see 
his/her family again. (Reference LTC F223) 

 
3. Sexual Abuse: Includes but is not limited to: indecent exposure, inappropriate touch, sexual comments. 
 
4. Physical Abuse: Includes but is not limited to hitting, slapping, pinching and kicking. It also includes 

controlling behavior through corporal punishment. 
 
5. Mental Abuse: Includes, but is not limited to: humiliation, harassment, and threats of punishment or 

deprivation.  Also includes taking photographs or recordings, with any type of equipment (e.g., cameras, 
smart phones and other electronic devices) of a resident and/or his/her private space without the 
resident’s, or designated representative’s written consent and/or keeping or distributing them through 
multimedia messages or on a social network is a violation of the resident’s right to privacy and 
confidentiality.  This would include, but is not limited to, photographs and recordings of residents that 
contain nudity, sexual and intimate relations, bathing, showering, toileting, providing perineal care such 
as after an incontinence episode, agitating a resident to solicit a response, derogatory statements directed 
to the resident, showing a body part without the resident’s face whether it is the chest, limbs or back, 
labeling resident’s pictures and/or providing comments in a demeaning manner, directing a resident to 
use inappropriate language, and showing the resident in a compromised position. 

 

36



Cordova Community Medical Center 
Policies and Procedures 

 
LTC 301 – Abuse Prevention, Recognition and Reporting 

2 of 8  
 

 
6. Involuntary Seclusion: Separation of a resident from other residents or from her/his room or 

confinement to his/her room (with or without roommates) against the resident’s will, or the will of the 
resident’s legal representative. Emergency or short term monitored separation from other residents will 
not be considered involuntary seclusion and may be permitted if used for a limited period of time as a 
therapeutic intervention to reduce agitation until professional staff can develop a plan of care to meet the 
resident’s needs. 

 
7. Neglect: Failure to provide goods and services necessary to avoid physical harm, mental anguish or 

mental illness. (Reference LTC 42 CFR 483.13 (c)) 
 
8. Misappropriation of Resident Property: Deliberate misplacement, exploitation, or wrongful temporary 

or permanent use of a resident’s belongings or money without the resident’s consent. (Reference LTC 42 
CFR 483.13 (c)) 

 
9. Injury of Unknown Source: An injury of unknown source shall be classified as such when BOTH of 

the following conditions are met: The source of the injury was not observed by any person OR the source 
of the injury could not be explained by the resident AND the injury is suspicious because of the extent of 
the injury OR the location of the injury OR the number of injuries observed at one particular time OR the 
incidences of injuries over time. Examples of minor injuries include, but are not limited to: small 
abrasions, lacerations, bruises limited to the surface of the skin, or injuries occurring in areas generally 
vulnerable to trauma such as hands, forearms, and shins. Substantial injuries may include, but are not 
limited to: moderate to large abrasions, burns, deep lacerations, bruises of deep color and depth, or those 
occurring in areas such as the back, face, head, neck, chest, breasts, groin, inner thigh, buttocks, genital 
or anal area and ALL fractures. 

 
Report: Any verbal or written report of abuse or neglect that states:  

1. What has happened 
2. To whom it happened 
3. When it happened 
4. Where it happened 
5. Who did the abusing or who was responsible for the neglect.  

 
Mandated to Report: Any employee of CCMC who has knowledge of the abuse or neglect of a resident, 
has reasonable cause that a resident is being or has been abused or neglected, or who has knowledge that a 
resident has sustained a physical injury that is not reasonably explained by the history of the injuries 
provided by those involved with the care of a resident.  
 
Procedure: 

 
1. Screening: All candidates for employment to CCMC will be screened, by contacting the appropriate 

state licensing registry and/or the previous employer, to ensure that candidates have not been convicted 
of abusing, neglecting, or mistreating residents by a court of law. Appropriate state registries will be 
contacted to determine if the candidates have had a finding entered with regards to abuse, neglect, and  

 
 

37



Cordova Community Medical Center 
Policies and Procedures 

 
LTC 301 – Abuse Prevention, Recognition and Reporting 

3 of 8  
 

mistreatment of residents or misappropriation of resident’s property. These steps will be documented and 
maintained in their personnel file in Human Resources. 

  
2. Training: All new employees will be required to review the abuse and neglect policy during their 

orientation process. This review will be documented on their orientation checklist and kept in their 
personnel file in Human Resources. All current employees will have on going sessions on issues related 
to abuse practices, i.e. appropriate interventions to deal with aggressive and/or catastrophic reactions of 
residents; how staff should report their knowledge related to allegations without fear of reprisal; how to 
recognize signs of burnout, frustration and stress that may lead to abuse; what constitutes abuse, neglect 
and misappropriation of resident property. These sessions will be conducted at least annually, or more 
often as deemed necessary. These sessions will be documented and kept in the employee’s personnel file. 
(Reference LTC 42 CFR 483.74 (c))   

 
3. Prevention:  

a. Residents, their family members and staff will have information provided to them on how and to 
whom they may report concerns, incidents and grievances without the fear of retribution, and provide 
feedback regarding the concerns that have been expressed. (Reference LTC 483.10 (f)) 

b. Staff will be able to identify, correct and intervene in situations in which abuse, neglect and/or 
misappropriation of resident property is more likely to occur.  

c. Analyze the features of the physical environment that may make abuse and/or neglect more likely to 
occur, such as secluded areas of the facility.  

d. Adequate staffing on each shift to meet the needs of the residents and assure that the staff assigned 
has knowledge of the individual resident’s care needs.  

e. Supervision of staff to identify inappropriate behaviors, such as using derogatory language, rough 
handling, ignoring residents while giving care, directing residents who need toileting assistance to 
urinate or defecate in their beds.  

f. Assessment, care planning and monitoring of residents with needs and behaviors which might lead to 
conflict or neglect, such as residents with a history of aggressive behaviors. (Reference LTC 483.13 
(b) and 483.13 (c)) 

 
4. Identification: Staff will be able to identify events, such as suspicious bruising of residents, occurrences, 

patterns, and trends that may constitute abuse, and to determine the direction of the investigation. 
(Reference LTC 483.13 (c) (2)) 

 
5. Investigation: The Director of Nursing and/or Chief Executive Officer will investigate the different 

types of incidents and identify the staff member responsible for the initial reporting, investigation of all 
violations and reporting the results to the proper authorities. (Reference LTC 483.13 (c) (2), (3), (4)) 
Facility staff will cooperate fully with those assigned to investigate the suspected abuse and/or neglect. 

 
6. Protection: The resident will be protected from harm during an abuse investigation. (Reference LTC 

483.13 (c) (3)) All reports, reviews and investigations will be held in strictest confidence, per the CCMC 
confidentiality policy. The person reporting the suspected abuse and/or neglect will be protected from 
retaliatory action. 

 
7. Reporting:  

a. External Reporting:  

38



Cordova Community Medical Center 
Policies and Procedures 

 
LTC 301 – Abuse Prevention, Recognition and Reporting 

4 of 8  
 

1. In accordance with state law, all suspected cases of abuse and/or neglect will be reported as 
outlined below: (Reference LTC 42CFR 483.13(b)(c)) 

 
Health Facilities Licensing 
 & Certification (HFL&C) 

Division of Social Services Administrator  

HOW TIME HOW TIME HOW TIME 
Initial reporting of incident Fax/Phone 24 hours Phone/written 24 hours Written Immediately 
Results of Investigation Written 5 days N/A N/A Written 5 days 

 
Health Facilities Licensing & Certification:  Phone – 907-334-2483 
      Secure Fax - 907-334-2682 
      After Hours – 1-888-387-9387 
Division of Senior Services:    Phone – 1-800-478-9996 
 

2. The report should include documentation of the date and time of the incident, resident(s)/staff 
involved description of the incident, observations and initial actions taken by the facility to 
protect/treat the resident involved and to protect other residents.  

b. Internal Reporting 
 
1. The individual reporting the suspected abuse and/or neglect informs the manager of that 

department.  
2. The individual reporting the suspected abuse completes the facilities Incident Report Form.  
3. The department manager informs the facility CEO, the Director of Nursing and Human Resources 

of the suspected abuse and/or neglect.  
4. The department manager conducts an immediate investigation.  
5. The department manager notifies the attending Medical Provider and the resident’s guardian 

and/or family members.  
6. The facility CEO and/or Director of Nursing submit a report to the appropriate state agencies 

according to the Alaska Statutes.  
7. All reports, reviews and investigations are kept in the strictest confidence.  
8. An individual who is mandated to report suspected abuse and/or neglect and who intentionally 

fails to report will be dealt with according to Alaska statutes and is liable for damage caused by 
the failure to report.  

9. The CEO and/or Director of Nursing will analyze the occurrence to determine what changes are 
needed, if any, to policies and procedures to prevent further occurrences. All incidents require 
investigation, and many will require some type of intervention by the facility. Not all of these 
incidents, however, will meet the criteria for reporting. A few examples of these types of 
incidents are as follows:  
a. A resident ran into a wall hitting his forehead; 
b. A resident was walking with a candy bar, lost his balance, and sat on the floor. No injuries 

were noted and the resident stated that he was not hurt.  
c. A resident was found sitting on the floor beside the bed. The resident stated that she fell.  
d. A resident was picking at her lips and a small amount of blood was present on her lips and 

fingernails.  
e. A C.N.A. found a resident sitting beside the bed in her room. The resident states that she sat 

down on the floor.  
f. A resident slid out of his wheelchair. No injuries were noted. 

39



Cordova Community Medical Center 
Policies and Procedures 

 
LTC 301 – Abuse Prevention, Recognition and Reporting 

5 of 8  
 

  
8. Disciplinary Action: CCMC will follow the guidelines set up in the personnel handbook when there is 

reasonable cause to believe that a staff member has willfully engaged in abuse and/or neglect.  
 

SUSPICION OF CRIME REPORTING:  
 
It is Cordova Community Medical Center’s policy to comply with the Elder Justice Act (EJA) about report-
ing a reasonable suspicion of a crime under Section 1150B of the Social Security Act, as established by the 
Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (ACA), § 6703(b)(3). Specifically, it is CCMC’s policy to: 
 

a. Annually notify all “covered individuals” (as that term is defined under the EJA) of their reporting 
obligations under the EJA to report a suspicion of a crime to the state survey agency (SSA) and local 
law enforcement for the political subdivision in which CCMC is located;  

b. Refrain from retaliating against any employee who reports a suspicion of a crime against an individ-
ual receiving care in CCMC: 

c. Post a notice in a conspicuous location that informs all “covered individuals” of 
o their reporting obligation under the EJA to report a suspicion of a crime to the SSA and local 

law enforcement; and  
o their right to file a complaint with the state survey agency if they feel the CCMC has retaliat-

ed against an employee who reported a suspected crime under this statute;  
d. Refrain from employing any individual who has been prohibited from working in a long term care fa-

cility because of failure to report a suspicion of a crime against a resident of a long term care facility; 
and  

e. Facilities are not required to report to either SSA or local law enforcement under this act; only indi-
viduals are required to report. However, CCMC has adopted a policy that it will report a suspected 
crime against a resident to the SSA and one or more local law enforcement entities for the political 
subdivision in which the facility is located.   
 

Statutory and CMS Policy References 
 

 §1150B of the Social Security Act, as established by §6703(b)(3) of the Patient Protection and Af-
fordable Care Act of 2010; and  

 
 CMS S&C: 11-30-NH. 

 
Definitions (from CMS S&C: 11-30-NH): 
 
“Covered Individual” means each individual who is an owner, operator, employee, manager, agent, or con-
tractor of a long-term care facility. 
 
“Suspicion of a Crime” is defined by law of the applicable political subdivision where a LTC facility is lo-
cated.  Applicable facilities must coordinate with their state and local law enforcement entities to determine 
what actions are considered crimes within their political subdivision.  
 
“Political subdivision” means a city, county, township or village. 
 

40



Cordova Community Medical Center 
Policies and Procedures 

 
LTC 301 – Abuse Prevention, Recognition and Reporting 

6 of 8  
 

“Local law enforcement” means the full range of potential responders to elder abuse, neglect, and exploita-
tion including: police, sheriffs, detectives, public safety officers, corrections personnel, prosecutors, medical 
examiners, investigators, and coroners.  
 
“Neglect” is the failure of a caregiver or fiduciary to provide the goods or services that are necessary to maintain 
the health or safety of an elder or self-neglect. 
 
“Self-Neglect” means an adult’s inability, due to physical or mental impairment or diminished capacity, to per-
form essential self-care tasks including obtaining essential food, clothing, shelter, and medical care; obtaining 
goods and services necessary to maintain physical health, mental health, or general safety; or managing one’s 
own financial affairs. 
 
“Serious bodily injury” is an injury involving extreme physical pain; involving substantial risk of death; involving 
protracted loss or impairment of the function of a bodily member, organ, or mental faculty; or requiring medical 
intervention such as surgery, hospitalization, or physical rehabilitation.  In the case of “criminal sexual abuse” 
which is defined as serious bodily injury/harm shall be considered to have occurred if the conduct causing the 
injury is relating to aggravated sexual abuse or relating to sexual abuse. 
 
“Retaliate against an employee” is when the employer discharges, demotes, suspends, threatens, harasses, or 
denies a promotion or any other employment-related benefit to an employee, or in any other manner discriminates 
against an employee within the terms and conditions of employment because the employee has met their obliga-
tion to report a suspicion of a crime.  
 
PROCEDURE:  
 

A.  Staff Reporting Requirements 
 

1. When staff (“staff” herein refers to covered individuals) suspect a crime has occurred against a resi-
dent at CCMC, they must report the incident to SSA and local law enforcement. 

2. Staff must report a suspicion of a crime to the state survey agency and at least one local law enforce-
ment entity within a designated time frame by e-mail, fax or telephone. The individual does not need 
to determine which local law enforcement entity to report a suspicion of crime; but, must report to at 
least one local law enforcement entity.  This will meet the individual’s obligation to report. 

3. Staff can use the facility form to report a suspicion of a crime. There is no requirement to use the 
form.  

4. Staff can either report the same incident as a single complaint or multiple individuals may file a sin-
gle report that includes information about the suspected crime from each staff person using the facili-
ty form.   

5. If, after a report is made regarding a particular incident, the original report may be supplemented by 
additional staff who become aware of the same incident. The supplemental information may be added 
to the form and must include the name of the additional staff along with the date and time of their 
awareness of such incident or suspicion of a crime.  However, in no way will a single or multiple per-
son report preclude an individual from reporting separately.  Either an individual or joint report will 
meet the individual’s obligation to report. 

 
 

41



Cordova Community Medical Center 
Policies and Procedures 

 
LTC 301 – Abuse Prevention, Recognition and Reporting 

7 of 8  
 

6. If the reportable event results in serious bodily injury, the staff member shall report the suspicion 
immediately, but not later than 2 hours after forming the suspicion. 
 

7. If the reportable event does not result in serious bodily injury, the staff member shall report the suspi-
cion not later than 24 hours after forming the suspicion. 

8. Failure to report in the required time frames may result in disciplinary action, including up to termi-
nation. 

9. Staff must report the suspicion of an incident to the Director of Nursing and the Chief Executive Of-
ficer immediately upon becoming aware of a suspicion of a crime.  

 
B.  Staff Notification 

 
1. Staff (i.e., “covered individual”) will annually receive a copy of their obligation to comply with the 

law and these policies and procedures. Staff will be required to sign an acknowledgment that they 
have received this information and agree to comply with the law and this policy and procedure. 

2. All new staff, as part of their orientation to work at the facility, shall receive a copy of their obliga-
tion to comply with the law and this policy and procedure.  

 
C.  Posting Requirements 

 
1. CCMC will post conspicuously in an appropriate location a sign specifying the rights of employees 

under the EJA. This sign shall include both  
a. The reporting requirements of each staff member; and  
b. A statement that an employee may file a complaint with the state survey agency against a 

long-term care facility that retaliates against an employee for filing, and information how to 
file such a complaint to the SSA.   

 
D. Facility Reporting  

 
1. CCMC will file a report to SSA and local law enforcement using the attached form or another appro-

priate mechanism when becoming aware of a suspicion of a crime.  
2. CCMC on behalf of staff will file a report to SSA and local law enforcement using the attached form 

or another appropriate mechanism when staff becomes aware of a suspicion of a crime. 
3. CCMC shall keep a record of these reports. 

 
Attachment: 

 Facility Suspected Crime Report Form  
           
 
QMC Approval Date:  12/5/2016 
HSB Approval Date:    12/8/2016 

 
 
Reference: 

 Cordova Community Medical Center Employee Handbook      

42



Cordova Community Medical Center 
Policies and Procedures 

 
LTC 301 – Abuse Prevention, Recognition and Reporting 

8 of 8  
 

 American Health Care Association, The Long Term Care Survey Manual, July 2003  
 LTC Tag number F223, pp-47.2         
 LTC Regulation 42 CFR 483.13 (c), pp-51       
 LTC Regulation 483.13 (c) (1) (ii) (A) & (B). pp-51      
 LTC Regulation 42CFR483.74 (c), pp-51        
 LTC Regulation 483.13 (b) and (c), pp-52       
 LTC Regulation 483.13 (c) (2), pp-52        
 LTC Regulation 483.13 (c) (2), (3), (4), pp-52.1       
 LTC Regulation 483.13 (b) (c), pp-52        

 
Cross – Reference: 

 LTC 306 Residents Rights     
 HIM 109 Confidentially of Patient Information       
 HIM 109A Confidentially of Patient Information        
 FSD 103 Incident Reports         

 
Attachment:        

 FSD 103c Facility Incident Report form       
 

Revision History: 
 12/08/2016: Added specific language regarding videotaping and photographing residents and 

combined policy LTC 334: Reporting Suspected Crimes Under the Elder Justice Act. 
 10/13/2016: Updated the contact telephone & fax numbers 
 10/27/2015: Updates 
 03/24/2005: Original policy 

 
 

Department Manager Signature ______________________________               Date _________________ 
CEO Signature _____________________________________________               Date _________________ 
 
Review Signature ___________________________________________  Date _________________ 
Review Signature ___________________________________________  Date _________________ 
Review Signature ___________________________________________  Date _________________ 
Review Signature ___________________________________________  Date _________________ 
Review Signature ___________________________________________  Date _________________ 

43



FACILITY SUSPECTED CRIME REPORT UNDER ELDER JUSTICE ACT 
Cordova Community Medical Center 

INSTRUCTIONS:  Submit this completed form to local law enforcement and your state survey agency by fax or email 
within 2 hours (if there is serious bodily injury) or 24 hours (if there is not serious bodily injury) of forming a reasonable 
suspicion that a crime may have been committed against any individual who is a resident of, or is receiving care from 
Cordova Community Medical Center. 
 

Cordova Community Medical Center: 
CEO – Scot Mitchell, FACHE 
602 Chase Avenue/P.O. Box 160, Cordova, Alaska     99574 
Phone:   907‐424‐8223 
Fax:    907‐424‐8116 
Email: SMitchell@cdvcmc.com 

Reporting Individual: 
 
Name:_________________________ 
Title: __________________________  
Phone: ________________________ 
 

Reported to State Survey Agency?    Yes □   No □    

Date Reported:   /   /     Time:______ 
 
Alaska Health Facilities Licensing and Certification  
4501 Business Park Boulevard, Suite 24, Bldg. L 
Anchorage, Alaska    99503 
Phone:  907‐334‐2483 
Secure Fax:  907‐334‐2682 
After Hours:  888‐387‐9587 

Reported to the Local Law Enforcement?    Yes □   No □   
Date Reported:   /   /     Time:______ 
 
Cordova Police Department 
610 Railroad Avenue/P.O. Box 1210 
Cordova, Alaska     99574 
Phone:   907‐424‐6100 
Fax:   907‐424‐6120 
 

SUMMARY OF SUSPECTED CRIME INVOLVING [RESIDENT NAME] and [DATE OF BIRTH], as well as a brief description of 
the location of the incident and, if available, the names of any individuals involved in the suspected crime.  (Attach 
additional sheets if necessary.  No. of pages attached ___) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Was there serious bodily injury?  No___   YES___ (must be reported within 2 hours) 

INDIVIDUAL[S] REPORTING 
THIS REPORT IS MADE BY THE FACILITY ON BEHALF OF ALL COVERED INDIVDUALS LIST BELOW. 

Name:  Date/time individual became aware of suspected crime  

1.  Date:   /   /     Time:______ 

2.  Date:   /   /     Time:______ 

3.  Date:   /   /     Time:______ 

4.  Date:   /   /     Time:______ 

5.  Date:   /   /     Time:______ 

6.  Date:   /   /     Time:______ 

7.  Date:   /   /     Time:______ 

8.  Date:   /   /     Time:______ 
 

NOTE: This report is required by law where a suspicion of crime has occurred and is in no way an admission by the person[s] submitting the 

report that a crime has actually occurred. 

44



FSD 103a  FSD 103a FSD 103a 

Cordova Community Medical Center 
INCIDENT REPORT 

Privileged and Confidential Medical Staff Peer Review Document 
Do Not Photocopy / Not a part of the Medical Record 

 
Form Directory: (please circle the appropriate incident[s]) 
#1 – Medication Error  #2 – Patient Falls #3 – Procedure Not Followed         #4 – Visitor Incident 
#5- Emergency Department #6 – Communication #7 – Safety           #8 – Employee Injury 
Patient Name: ______________________________ MR#: ___________ DOB: ______ Sex:   M / F 
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
               
               
 
 
              
              
               
 
 
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              

General Information: 
Admission Type: Admit Diagnosis: Location: 

___ Inpatient ____________________ ___ Patient Room ___ Radiology Depart. 

___ Outpatient ____________________ ___ ER ___ Physical Therapy 

___ ER Patient ____________________ ___ Parking Lot ___ Labor & Delivery 

___ Visitor ____________________ ___ Laboratory ___ Long Term Care  

___ Staff ____________________ ___ Dietary ___ Waiting Room 

 Other:   Other: 

Occurrence Information: 
Date: _______________ Time: _____________ Occurrence Description:  

Condition Prior to Event: _________________________________________ 

Alert ___ Yes ___ No _________________________________________ 

Disoriented ___ Yes ___ No _________________________________________ 

Asleep ___ Yes ___ No _________________________________________ 

Anesthetized ___ Yes ___ No _________________________________________ 

Other:   Yes  No

#1 – Medication Error:  #2 – Patient Falls / Injury:  

___ Time ___ Observed 

___ Dosage ___ Unobserved 

___ Dose Omitted ___ Fall during transfer 

___ Wrong Patient ___ Collapsed, became weak 

___ Drug ___ From bed – bed position __ high   __ low   __ NA 

___ Route ___ Ambulating - __ No assistance   __ With device 

___ Adverse Reaction  ___ Sitting (commode, wheelchair) 

___ Delay greater than 30 minutes ___ Floor:  __ Wet   __ Dry   __ Carpet 

___ Infiltrate / Phlebitis ___ Restraints prior to 

___ Written incorrectly ___ Restraints after 

___ Transcribed incorrectly ___ Rails up  __ R   __ L  __ Both 

___ Pharmacy Error ___ Rails down __ R   __ L  __ Both 

___ Blood Transfusion ___ Documented “At Risk”  __ Yes   __ No 

___ Missing Medication / Count Incorrect Other Patient Injury: 

Medication: Dose ________  Time: _______ ___ Burn 

 ___ Allergic reaction 

Documented in Medical Records:  __ Yes  __ No ___ Electrical Contact 

___ Reported to Physician:  ___ Aspiration 

       Date/Time: __________________________ ___ Exposures: _______________________________________

___ Orders received: __ Yes   __ No  

 ___ Family Notified 
 

45



FSD 103a  FSD 103a FSD 103a 

              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
            
#6 Communication: 
___ Patient call/complaint 
___ Page not received/answered 
___ Nursing Advice 
___ Physician related concerns 
___ Other Hospital Call 
___ Mental Health referral 
___ Doctor’s Office calls 
___ Family Calls 
___ Other: _____________________________________ 

#7 Equipment/Safety: 
Equipment:  
Type: _____________________  Serial #: _____________ 
Manufacturer: ___________________________________ 
Equipment sequestered?  ___ Yes     ___ No 

___ Equipment failure 
___ Not available 
___ Improper use 
___ Electrical problem 
___ Mechanical problem 
___ Malfunction/Defective 
___ Wrong Equipment 
___ Improper Assembly 
___ Inspection Outdated 
___ Tampering 
___ Disconnected 

___ Other:  
___ Security 
___ Chemical spill 
___ Contaminated material 
___ Patient/Staff exposure 
___ Electrical 

 
#8 Employee Injury: 

___ Needle stick 
___ Blood/Body Fluid Exposure 
___ Chemical Exposure 

___ Cuts 
___ Fall 
___ Burn 

___ Electrical Contact 
___ Struck by Object 
___ Skin Irriation 

___ Overexertion 
___ Respiratory Exposure 
___ Other: ______________

Brief Description of Event: __________________________________________________________________________

Job performing at time of accident:: ___________________________________________________________________
Physician notified:   __ Yes   __ No           Dr. __________________________________  Time: __________________ 
Family notified: __ Yes   __ No           Name:  __________________________________  Time: __________________ 
Referred to:    ___ Employee Health     ___ ER      ___ Family Doctor     ___ No Referral 

ER Exam by:   ___ Nurse     ___ M.D.     ___ Staff declined MD exam 
Worker’s Compensation Form completed:  ___ Yes     ___ No 
 
 
 
EMPLOYEE SIGNATURE: ________________________________________________________________________ 

Date Reported: __________________________ 

Report prepared by:  Name: ____________________________________ Title: _________________________ 

Department Supervisor: Name: ____________________________________ Department: ___________________ 

 

# 3 Procedure Not Followed: 
___ Code Directive ___ Dietary ___ Medical Records ___ Charting 

___ Suicide/Detox protocol ___ Lab/X-Ray ___ Paging System ___ Medical Staff coverage 

___ Blood Bank ___ Isolation Protocol ___ Staffing ___ Notification error 

___ Mental Health emergency ___ Consent ___ Specimen handling ___ Exposure: __________

___ Personal Property missing ___ Patient Identification ___ Patient Transfer ___ Other: _____________

#4 Visitor Incident           #5 Emergency Department     
___ Visitor Fall   __ floor wet   __ floor dry   __ carpet ___ Delay in service – Waiting Time: _____________ 

___ Visitor injury: ______________________________ ___ Return with same problem 

___ Property Damage – Type: ____________________ ___ Patient Complaint 

___ Visitor complaint ___ Family Complaint 

___ Visitor exposure – type: ______________________ ___ Left before treatment 

46



Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
17

 
 

◄
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
7 

Ja
n

u
ar

y 
 2

01
7 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
01

7 
►

 

S
u

n
 

M
o

n
 

T
u

e 
W

ed
 

T
h

u
 

F
ri

 
S

at
 

1 
Ne

w 
Ye

ar
's 

Da
y 

 
2 

  CC
MC

 B
us

ine
ss

 O
ffic

e, 
Pr

im
ar

y C
ar

e C
lin

ic 
an

d 
So

un
d A

lte
rn

ati
ve

s a
re

 
CL

OS
ED

 
 

3 
 

 
4 

 
 

5 
 

 
6 

 
 

7 
 

 

8 
 

 
9 

 
 

10
  

 
11

  
 

12
  HS

B 
Re

gu
lar

 
Me

et
in

g 
7p

m
 

13
  

 
14

  
 

15
  

 
16

 M
ar

tin
 Lu

the
r K

ing
 

 
17

  
 

18
  

 
19

  
 

20
 

Ina
ug

ur
ati

on
 D

ay
 

 

21
  

 

22
  

 
23

  
 

24
  

 
25

  
 

26
  

 
27

  
 

28
  

 

29
  

 
30

  
 

31
  

 
N

o
te

s:
 

 

47



Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
01

7 
 

◄
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
7 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
 2

01
7 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
7 
►

 

S
u

n
 

M
o

n
 

T
u

e 
W

ed
 

T
h

u
 

F
ri

 
S

at
 

 
 

 
1 

 
       

2 
Gr

ou
nd

ho
g D

ay
 

 
3 

 
 

4 
 

 

5 
Su

pe
r B

ow
l 

 
6 

 
       

7 
 

 
8 

 
 

9 
 

HS
B 

Re
gu

lar
 

Me
et

in
g 

7p
m

 

10
  

 
11

  
 

12
  

 
13

  
      

14
 V

ale
nti

ne
's 

Da
y 

 
15

  
 

16
  

 
17

  
 

18
  

 

19
  

 
20

 P
RE

SI
DE

NT
S 

DA
Y 

 CC
MC

 B
us

ine
ss

 O
ffic

e, 
Pr

im
ar

y C
ar

e C
lin

ic 
an

d 
So

un
d A

lte
rn

ati
ve

s a
re

 
CL

OS
ED

 
 

21
  

 
22

  
 

23
  

 
24

  
 

25
  

 

26
  

 
27

  
 

28
  

 
N

o
te

s:
 

 

48



M
ar

ch
 2

01
7 

 
◄

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

17
 

M
ar

ch
  

20
17

 
A

pr
il 

20
17

 ►
 

S
u

n
 

M
o

n
 

T
u

e 
W

ed
 

T
h

u
 

F
ri

 
S

at
 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

2 
 

 
3 

 
 

4 
 

 

5 
 

 
6 

 
 

7 
 

 
8 

 
 

9 
 

HS
B 

Re
gu

lar
 

Me
et

in
g 

7p
m

 

10
  

 
11

  
 

12
 D

ay
lig

ht 
Sa

vin
g B

eg
ins

 
 

13
  

 
14

  
 

15
  

 
16

  
 

17
 S

ain
t P

atr
ick

's 
Da

y 
 

18
  

 

19
  

 
20

 S
pr

ing
 B

eg
ins

  
 

21
  

 
22

  
 

23
  

 
24

  
 

25
  

 

26
  

 
27

 S
EW

AR
DS

 D
AY

 
 CC

MC
 B

us
ine

ss
 O

ffic
e, 

Pr
im

ar
y C

ar
e C

lin
ic 

an
d 

So
un

d A
lte

rn
ati

ve
s a

re
 

CL
OS

ED
 

 

28
  

 
29

  
 

30
  

 
31

  
 

N
o

te
s:

 

 

49


	12 08 2016 Regular Meeting Agenda
	11 10 2016 Minutes Regular Meeting
	CEO Report December 8 HSB Meeting
	September Financials
	October Financials
	From QHR President and CEO
	November 2016  - Quorum Board Minutes
	Memo 2017 Continuous Quality Improvement Plan
	CCMC Quality Plan 2017 Final (2)
	Memo LTC 301 Abuse, Prevention, Recognition and Reporting Policy
	Crime Report Form September 29 2016
	NSG 123-FSD 103a Incident Report
	January 2017
	February 2017
	March 2017
	Sept Financials Final.pdf
	September Financials
	September Financial Statement




